
 Palmer Planning Board 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

                         Monday, December 1, 2014 

I  Call to order 
 

Chairman Michael Marciniec called the meeting to order at 7:05PM on Monday, December 
1, 2014 in the Town Hall Meeting Room 1. Present were members Norman Czech, Thomas 
Skowyra, Kathleen Burns and Andrew Golas. Also present was Town Planner, Linda Leduc, 
and Nicole Parker, recording minutes.   

 
II New Business 
 
Northern Construction Services, LLC.  Re: SPA 14-01/ SW 14-06 
 

A Request From Don Frydryk, of Sherman & Frydryk Engineering, dated November 18, 2014 to be on 
the next agenda, following a letter dated October 17, 2014 requesting to leave the authorized access road 
open until construction is complete. The Board acknowledged receipt of the request at their regular 
scheduled meeting on November 3, 2014. The Board at that time determined that they was concerned 
with non-compliance of some conditions of approval of above referenced decision. Specifically, 
condition #10, stating that “The vegetated buffer and fencing, disturbed as a result of the installation of 
temporary construction road, shall be returned to its original state after construction, but no later than 
October 1, 2014.”  

 
The Board felt that allowing the applicant to be in more non- compliance could not be authorized and 
so voted that night unanimously that all original conditions and timeline should be met before other 
requests could be considered.   
 
D. Frydryk requested three items. The first was a modification of the condition of approval to allow 
temporary access between two abutting properties until completion of construction on new site.  
 
Applicant stated that he has not yet applied for a building permit. The Board questioned as to why and 
Mr. Rakhonen held up his stamped plans and said he would not have spent thirteen thousand dollars on 
engineering fees if he wasn’t planning on building. Mr. Rakhonen also stated that he believes it is safer 
to traverse between the two sites rather than go onto the public way and disrupt on going traffic. He 
also stated that he had been in other towns doing more impertanant work and the he did not see the 
task to be so imperative.  
 
D.Frydryk proposed that a condition would be that if no building permit was issued by January 15, 2015 
then the access way would be closed.  
 
After the Board reiterated the fact that conditions have not been met, Mr. Rakhonen asked as to 
whether the Building Inspector was in the building. M.Marciniec stated that the Planning Board is not 

1 
 



the authority for Building Permits. Mr. Rakhonen then stated that the Board had required him to get a 
demolition permit last year before he was issued the original permit. The Board stated that they did not 
require it, that Mr. Rakhonen had stated that he had a demolition permit and the Board asked for a 
copy, only to find out the next day from the Building Inspector that no demolition permit was ever 
applied for on that site. But the Planning Board requires no such permits. 
 
T.Skowyra then stated that he remembered L.Leduc requiring it and reading an e-mail from the building 
inspector. He raised his voice and claimed that L.Leduc is not doing her job and was acting like the 
Zoning Enforcement Officer. He stated that she only hears what she wants to hear. L.Leduc said 
“Excuse me?” and stated that she does not do any enforcement work and only does what the Board 
asks of her. She stated that she is there to support the Board and that the meeting was not an 
appropriate place for this accusatory/defensive  discussion. T.Skowyra interjected and shouted “Then 
shut up”. L.Leduc stated that she was totally insulted. T.Skowyra replied “Good. I am getting a lawyer. 
When T.Skowuyra was asked as to why he is seeking legal representation, he stated “You’ll soon find 
out.”  
 
K.Burns then said to Mr. Rakhonen that every permit ever issued to him ultimately falls into non- 
compliance because conditions are notoriously not met.  
 
Mr. Rakhonen question as to whether or not they want his business and all of his employees to move 
out of the town. He stated that he has 150 workers and that the Board is pushing him out of town.   
 
N.Czech reiterated that past practice on his sites has shown that Mr. Rakhonen has disregard for the 
Planning Board and their authority and that is fundamentally why the Board is reluctant to issue a 
continuance of a condition that is currently in non- compliance.   
 
Mr. Rakhonen stated that he felt that the past sites were not pertinent to this situation and feels as if the 
Board is being petty. He then asked N.Czech if he knows anything about running his own business in 
which T.Skowyra immediately replied, that he does not, and that he is an employee at a business. When 
confronted by K.Burns about not letting N.Czech answer, T.Skowyra replied that N.Czech does not run 
a business, and that he himself does. K.Burns then stated she too, had no recollection of any of T. 
Skowyra’s allegations, to which he replied that she ought to start listening during meetings. 

 
There was a motion to modify the condition s of approval to allow the temporary access way between 
the two abutting properties to remain open until completion of construction on the new site. 
 
Motion to approve was made by A.Golas and seconded by T. Skowyra. Voting in favor of motion was 
A.Goals and T.Skowyra. Voting against motion was M.Marciniec, K.Burns, N.Czech. Motion failed (2:3) 
 
There was a motion to modify the completion date and change it to May, 2016 with a condition to 
provide construction schedule dates to the Planning Board once the Building Permit is issued. 
 
Motion was made to approve modification of completion date and construction timeline by A.Golas. 
Seconded by N.Czech. Motion passed (5:0) 
 
The applicant’s representative then asked the Board if they could provide them with the procedure for 
approval of the modifications to the site plan on each of the abutting properties to allow a permanent 
access connection between the two parcels after construction is complete. 

2 
 



 
The Board stated they may need to consult an attorney for advisement. At the very least it would require 
two new site plans. Mr. Frydryk stated that he would also get a legal opinion and possibly just combine 
the two lots.  
 
After applicant left the meeting, L.Leduc inquired to T. Skowyra as to what exactly his dispute is with 
her and what exactly he is going to retain legal counsel over as pertained to her. He answered the same 
sentence several times. “You will see. You will soon see.” At which point the Board decided to move on 
to new business. 
 
Minutes- November 3, 2014 
 
Motion was made to accept minutes as amended by K.Burns. Seconded by N.Czech. Motion passed 
(5:0) 
 
Year End Gravel Reports 
 
John Furmna, of Vanasse, Hangin & Brutlin (VHB) went over his reviews dated December 1, 2014.  
 
RDL Associates: 
 
No recent activity. Action items for the operator were as follows: 
Fix orange perimeter fence; Adjust evacuation slopes; eradicate invasive species (Japanese knot weed) 
 
RB Enterprises: 
 
Possible to close out once stone piles are moved. Wells are completely dry. It is recommended that a 
close out plan be generated. The pile of stone currently on site is not native of surrounding earth. It is 
J.Furman’s belief that it has been brought in.  
 
The Board would like a reminder sent to the other site on Cedar Hill. There is belief that processed 
stone is being stored on site.  
 
JJC Materials 
 
Slope was dying due to dry climate. It was noted that Tom Shea, operator, hand seeded and is growing 
in very nicely. There is approximately 100-150 yards of sand still on site, but looks as if it’s being slowly 
moved as pile is slowly diminishing.  
 
Edge Realty Trust: 
 
It was anticipated that at the next inspection the well will be done. The grading should be fine.  

   M.Marciniec stated that great care should be taken given that this particular site is so close to an abutter. 
 
Motion to acknowledge receipt of reports was made by A.Golas. Seconded by N.Czech. Motion passed 
(5:0) 
 
Interest Allocation Report from October 2014 was distributed to the Board for their review. 

3 
 



 
VHB Contract Renewal  
 
J.Furman was present and spoke of one change to the contract. There was one portion on the risk 
management section that had a minor amendment. M.Marciniec stated that there should probably be an 
alternate to this firm in the event there was a conflict of interest or for any other reason that could arise. 
He will look into it and advise the Board when he arrives at an answer.  
 
Motion was made to recommend approval of contract by A.Golas. Seconded by N.Czech. Motion 
passed (5:0) 
 
III Town Planner Update 
 
Memo regarding Priority Development Protection Areas  
 
L.Leduc distributed a memo dated December 1, 2014 regarding a map that was presented from Pioneer 
Valley Planning Commission (PVPC), created for the Land Use Priority Plan for the Pioneer Valley 
Region.  
 
It was recommended to the Board that the area of the map reserved in white (Climate Resistant 
Landscape), be removed from the map with supporting documentation stating that these areas were 
either already developed or developable in the future.  
 
Motion was made to acknowledge receipt of the letter by N.Czech. Seconded by A.Golas. Motion 
passed (5:0) 
 
At the end of the meeting L.Leduc stated to T.Skowyra that she oes not act like the Zoning 
Enforcement Officer and would like clarification on what she said she felt to be threats of legal action 
against her. T.Skowyra only replied you will see, you will see. T.Skowyra then reiterated that he wants all 
minutes transcribed and recorded. 
 
IV Adjournment 8:40PM 
 
 
Motion to adjourn at 8:40PM was made by K.Burns. Seconded by N.Czech. Motion passed (5:0) 
 
 
 

 
                                                                                                                 _____ 

Andrew M. Golas, clerk 

4 
 


	Palmer Planning Board

